
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 
Joint Chief Executive 

Rob Barlow 
 

 
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 

 

 
 

 

3 January 2023 
 
 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 

 
Dear Councillor 
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee on 
Wednesday, 11th January, 2023 at 10.00 am 

in the Committee Room, Municipal Buildings, West Street, Boston PE21 8QR 

 
ROB BARLOW 
Joint Chief Executive 
 
Membership: 
 
Chairman:   
Vice Chairman:   
Councillors: Katie Chalmers, Judy Welbourn and Stephen Woodliffe 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 
PART I - PRELIMINARIES 
 

A   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 

B   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS  
 

 To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda. 
 

PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 
 

1   
 

TO CONSIDER AN APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE WHERE 
RELEVANT REPRESENTATIONS HAVE BEEN RECEIVED (Pages 1 - 52) 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 
 
Notes: 
 
The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Pippa Rose, 
Democratic Services Officer, Municipal Buildings, Boston, Telephone: 01205 314228 e-
mail: pippa.rose@boston.gov.uk  
 
Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify as soon as possible 
giving the name of the Council Member (if any) who will be attending the meeting as their 
substitute. 
 
Alternative Versions 
Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format such as larger text, 
Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on direct dial (01205) 
314226 
 
 

Emergency Procedures 
In the event of a fire alarm sounding all attendees are asked to leave the building 

via the nearest emergency exit and make their way to the Fire Assembly Point 
located in the car park at the rear of the Municipal Buildings. 

 



 

 
 

 

REPORT TO: LICENSING COMMITTEE – SUB-COMMITTEE 

DATE: 11 JANUARY 2022 – 10.00 HOURS  

SUBJECT: 
 
 
PURPOSE:  

BOSTON BIG WEEKEND, CENTRAL PARK, PARKGATE, BOSTON 
 
TO CONSIDER AN APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE WHERE 
RELEVANT REPRESENTATIONS HAVE BEEN RECEIVED 
 

KEY DECISION: NO 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: COUNCILLOR PAUL SKINNER 

REPORT OF: 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

SENIOR LICENSING OFFICER 

ANNA MCDOWELL 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: CENTRAL  

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

SUMMARY 
 
This is a hearing to consider an application for a Premises Licence, the applicant being NS-UK 
Group (Northern) Ltd and the proposed Designated Premises Supervisor being Mr David Bailey.  
In summary the applicant seeks a licence for the sale of alcohol for consumption on and off the 
premises, the provision of regulated entertainment, consisting of live and recorded music, 
performances of dance, anything of a similar description to live music, recorded music and 
performances of dance, and the provision of late night refreshment. 
 
A relevant representation has been received from a person not being a “responsible authority”.   
 
The Licensing Act 2003 requires that the Licensing Sub-Committee determine an application 
where any relevant representations have been received. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The Licensing Sub-Committee must determine the application, in accordance with the Licensing 
Act 2003, having regard to the guidance issued under Section 182 of the Act and the Licensing 
Authority’s Statement of Licensing Policy.    
 
It is recommended that the Sub-Committee take into account all evidence and information 
received from the interested party and the applicant and determine this matter. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



The sub-committee must, having regard to all information presented, take such steps as 
considered appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.  These steps are 
summarised as follows: 
 

• To grant the licence, as applied for; 

• To grant the licence with modified conditions; 

• To reject the whole or part of the application. 
 
The sub-committee must give full reasons for its decision. 
 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

Section 35 (3) of the Licensing Act 2003 requires that 

“3. Where relevant representations are made, the authority must –  

a. hold a hearing to consider them, unless the authority, the applicant and each person who has 
made a representation agree that a hearing is unnecessary, and 

b. having regard to representations, take such of the steps mentioned as it considers necessary 
for the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

None 

 
1.  BACKGROUND 
 
1.1  The premises is located in the centre of Boston in a predominantly residential area. A plan 

indicating the premises location is attached at APPENDIX 1. 
 
2.   APPLICATION 
 
2.1     An application for the grant of a premises licence, under section 17 of the Licensing Act 

2003, was received from NS-UK Group (Northern) Ltd and specifies Mr David Bailey to be 
the Designated Premises Supervisor in charge of the sale of alcohol.   

 
2.2 The applicant seeks a licence to provide licensable activities on one weekend in June or July 

annually as follows: 
 

Sale by retail of alcohol for consumption on and off the premises, live music, recorded 
music, performances of dance, anything similar to live and recorded music and 
performances of dance: 
 
Saturday and Sunday from 12.00 hours until 22.00 hours.  

  
 A copy of the application, including a site plan, is attached at APPENDIX 2. 
 

Page 2



2.3 In submitting the application the applicant is required to describe any steps intended to be 
taken to promote the four licensing objectives, namely: 

 

• The prevention of crime and disorder 

• Public safety 

• The prevention of public nuisance 

• The protection of children from harm 
 
2.4 The steps the applicant intends to take to promote the licensing objectives, should the 

licence be granted, are in accordance with the operating schedule at section M of the 
application form.  

 
3.  CONSULTATION 
 
3.1 As required under the terms of the Licensing Act 2003 the application form was correctly 

completed and a copy was served on all Responsible Authorities.  The application was 
advertised in a local newspaper and outside the premises.  Notice of the application was 
posted on the council website.  

 
3.2  Responsible Authorities and other persons are permitted to submit a representation 

regarding the application during the 28-day period starting on the day after the day the 
application is given.   

 
4. RELEVANT REPRESENTATIONS 

 
4.1 The Licensing Act 2003 states that relevant representations mean representations which 

are about the likely effect of the grant of the premises licence on the promotion of the 
licensing objectives.   

 
4.2 A relevant representation was received by the chief officer of Lincolnshire Police requesting 

additional steps on the applicant’s part to ensure the promotion of all four licensing 
objectives. Following mediation by the Licensing Authority between Lincolnshire Police and 
the applicant, the additional steps suggested by Lincolnshire Police where agreed to by the 
applicant. Those steps will be incorporated into the Premises Licence as conditions.  

 
As the representation was mediated it is not a matter for the Sub-Committee to consider. 
However, for information a copy of this representation is attached at APPENDIX 3. 

 
4.3  A relevant representation was also received from a person other than a responsible 

authority. The representation raises concerns regarding the impact of the event on the 
licensing objectives, particularly in respect of the potential for noise pollution to be caused. 
No further steps to facilitate the promotion of the licensing objectives have been suggested 
by the author. A copy of the representation is attached at APPENDIX 4.  

 
4.4 Parties who submit a representation may choose to rely on their written submission or may 

attend the hearing to put their representation to the sub-committee.  At the hearing the 
party may not add further representation to that disclosed to the applicant but may expand 
on the existing representation.   

 
 
 

Page 3



5. Human Rights & Equalities 
 
5.1 In determining the review the Sub-Committee should be aware of and take into account 

any implications that may arise from the Human Rights Act 1998.  Under the Human Rights 
Act it is unlawful for a public authority to act in a manner which is incompatible with the 
European Convention on Human Rights. 

 
5.2 When determining the application the Sub-Committee should be satisfied that any decision 

which interferes with the rights of the licence holder, or of any other person, only does so 
insofar as is necessary to protect the rights of others and that no alternative decision would 
be more appropriate.  

 
5.3 The Sub-Committee, in its decision-making, must have due regard to its public sector 

equality duty under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010.  A copy of section 149 of the Act is 
attached at APPENDIX 5. 

 
6. CONSIDERATIONS 
 
6.1 The application must be considered on its own merits; standardised conditions cannot be 

applied. 
 
6.2 Determination of whether an action or step is appropriate for the promotion of the 

licensing objectives requires an assessment of what would be suitable to achieve that end.   
 

Whilst this does not require a licensing authority to decide that no lesser step will achieve 
the aim, the authority should aim to consider the potential burden that the condition 
would impose on the Premises Licence holder as well as the potential benefit in terms of 
the promotion of the licensing objectives.  However, it is imperative that the Sub-
Committee ensures that the factors, which form the basis of its determination, are limited 
to consideration of the promotion of the licensing objectives and nothing outside of those 
parameters.  The Sub-Committee must come to its determination based on an assessment 
of the evidence of both the risks and benefits either for or against making the 
determination. 

 
6.3 When considering the evidence the Sub-Committee must satisfy themselves whether or not 

the licensing objectives would be promoted as the application stands. The Sub-Committee 
must have regard to evidence, not speculation. In the case of a new application/new 
premises, the history and makeup of the site (and surrounding area) and the history of the 
applicant will be relevant, if sufficiently evidenced. 

 
6.4 The Sub-Committee should seek to focus the hearing on the relevant parts of 

representations only and the steps considered appropriate to promote the particular 
licensing objective(s) that have given rise to the representations and avoid straying into 
undisputed areas.  Any matter, which is not about the likely effect of the grant of the 
licence on the promotion of one or more of the four licensing objectives, is not, in 
accordance with the Licensing Act 2003, relevant and therefore cannot be considered. 

 
6.5 Conditions on a premises licence are important in setting the parameters within which 

premises can lawfully operate.  The use of wording such as “must”, “shall” and “will” is 
encouraged.  If consideration is being given to attaching or amending conditions, they: 

 

• Must be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives; Page 4



• Must be precise and enforceable; 

• Must be unambiguous and clear in what they intend to achieve; 

• Should not duplicate other statutory requirements or other duties or responsibilities 
placed on the licence holder by other legislation; 

• Must be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of the premises and 
events concerned; 

• Should not be standardised and may be unlawful when it cannot be demonstrated that 
they are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives in an individual case; 

• Should not replicate offences set out in the 2003 Act or any other legislation; 

• Should be proportionate, justifiable and capable of being met; 

• Cannot seek to manage the behavior of customers once they are beyond the direct 
management of the licence holder and their staff, but may impact on the behavior of 
customers in the immediate vicinity of the premises or as they enter or leave; and 

• Should be written in a prescriptive format.   
 
6.6 In determining the application, in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 and with a view 

to promoting the licensing objectives in the overall interests of the local community, the 
licensing authority must give appropriate weight to: 

 

• The Licensing Authority’s Statement of Licensing Policy. Relevant extracts of which 
are attached at APPENDIX 6. 

• The statutory guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003.  
 

 The sub-committee’s attention is drawn, in particular, to the following paragraphs of the 
Section 182 Guidance. 

 
 Paragraph 9.3 
  
 Where a representation concerning the licensing objectives is made by a responsible 

authority about a proposed operating schedule, and it is relevant, the licensing authority’s 
discretion will be engaged. It will also be engaged if another person makes relevant 
representations to the licensing authority, which are also not frivolous or vexatious. 
Relevant representations can be made in opposition to, or in support of, an application and 
can be made by any individual, body or business that has grounds to do so. 

 
Paragraph 9.4 
 
A representation is relevant if it relates to the likely effect of the grant of the licence on the 
promotion of at least one of the licensing objectives. For example, a representation from a 
local businessperson about the commercial damage caused by competition from new 
licensed premises would not be relevant. On the other hand, a representation from a 
businessperson that nuisance caused by new premises would deter customers from 
entering the local area, and the steps proposed by the applicant to prevent that nuisance 
were inadequate, would be relevant. In other words, representations should relate to the 
impact of licensable activities carried on from premises on the objectives. For 
representations in relation to variations to be relevant, they should be confined to the 
subject matter of the variation. There is no requirement for a responsible authority or other 
person to produce a recorded history of problems at the premises to support their 
representations, and in fact this would not be possible for new premises. 

 
Paragraph 9.37  

Page 5



 
As a matter of practice, licensing authorities should seek to focus the hearing on the steps 
considered appropriate to promote the particular licensing objective or objectives that have 
given rise to the specific representation and avoid straying into undisputed areas. A 
responsible authority or other person may choose to rely on their written representation. 
They may not add further representations to those disclosed to the applicant prior to the 
hearing, but they may expand on their existing representation and should be allowed 
sufficient time to do so, within reasonable and practicable limits.  

 
Paragraph 9.38 
 
In determining the application with a view to promoting the licensing objectives in the 
overall interests of the local community, the licensing authority must give appropriate 
weight to:  
 
• the steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives;  
• the representations (including supporting information) presented by all the parties;  
• this Guidance;  
• its own statement of licensing policy.  
 
Paragraph 9.39  

The licensing authority should give its decision within five working days of the conclusion of 
the hearing (or immediately in certain specified cases) and provide reasons to support it. 
This will be important if there is an appeal by any of the parties. Notification of a decision 
must be accompanied by information on the right of the party to appeal. After considering 
all the relevant issues, the licensing authority may grant the application subject to such 
conditions that are consistent with the operating schedule. Any conditions imposed must 
be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives; there is no power for the 
licensing authority to attach a condition that is merely aspirational. For example, conditions 
may not be attached which relate solely to the health of customers rather than their direct 
physical safety. Any conditions added to the licence must be those imposed at the hearing 
or those agreed when a hearing has not been necessary.  

Paragraph 9.40  
 
Alternatively, the licensing authority may refuse the application on the grounds that this is 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. It may also refuse to specify a 
designated premises supervisor and/or only allow certain requested licensable activities. In 
the interests of transparency, the licensing authority should publish hearings procedures in 
full on its website to ensure that those involved have the most current information.  

 
7. Appeal 
 
7.1 The applicant and any party making a representation may appeal the decision made by the 

sub-committee to the Magistrates’ Court.  However, the decision made by the sub-

committee takes immediate effect.  Any appeal must be made within 21 days of the day on 

which all parties were notified, in writing, by the Licensing Authority, of the decision to be 

appealed against. 

 
EXPECTED BENEFITS TO THE PARTNERSHIP 

Page 6



By working together as a Partnership the three sovereign councils benefit from the learning and 
experience of each other and also the trade benefits from a consistency and uniformity of 
approach from the Licensing service across the sub-region. 
 
IMPLICATIONS 
 
SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL’S PARTNERSHIP 
There are no SELCP implications. 
CORPORATE PRIORITIES 
This work contributes to one Priority areas in the Boston Borough Council Corporate Strategy 2020 
to 2024; Priority One. People Focussed: Make Boston as healthy and safe place to work. 
STAFFING 
There are no implications in terms of staffing. 
CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
An appeal could be lodged with Lincolnshire Magistrates’ Court against the decision of the 
Regulatory & Appeals Sub – Committee. 
DATA PROTECTION 
The personal details relating to the persons/s submitting representation has been redacted for 
data protection purposes. 
FINANCIAL 
There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT 
There is a risk that the Council’s reputation could be damaged if licensing legislation and guidance 
are not upheld and applied appropriately. 
 
STAKEHOLDER / CONSULTATION / TIMESCALES 
There are no stakeholder implications. 
 
REPUTATION 
There is a risk that the Council’s reputation could be damaged if licensing legislation and guidance 
are not upheld and applied appropriately. 
 
CONTRACTS 
None. 
 
CRIME AND DISORDER 
The Council has a duty to promote the Licensing Objectives. 
 
EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY/ HUMAN RIGHTS/ SAFEGUARDING 
Equality Implications: The licensing authority must have due regard to its public sector equality duty 
under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. 
Human Rights: Under the Human Rights Act it is unlawful for a public authority to act in a manner that 
is incompatible with the European Convention on Human Rights. 
Safeguarding Implications: The Council has a duty to protect the public and promote the four 
licensing objectives of the prevention of crime and disorder, public safety, the prevention of public 
nuisance and the protection of children from harm within the Borough that is consistent with 
prevailing national guidance and standards. 
 
 
HEALTH AND WELL BEING 

Page 7



The licensing and compliance role of the Council is important in improving the health, safety, 
security and welfare of the borough’s residents, visitors, and business community. Effective 
implementation of a fair, proportionate and consistent licensing regime should help to promote 
the local economy. 
 
CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 
There are no implications. 
 
ACRONYMS 
None 
 

APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX 1 Location plan  

APPENDIX 2 Premises Licence application 

APPENDIX 3 Copy of mediated representation from Lincolnshire Police  

APPENDIX 4 Copy of representation from interested party 

APPENDIX 5 Extract from the Equality Act 2010 

APPENDIX 6 Extract from BBC Licensing Policy 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 

in the production of this report. 

 

 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body. 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Anna McDowell - Senior Licensing Officer  

anna.mcdowell@boston.gov.uk 

Signed off by: Christian Allen – Assistant Director Regulatory 

christian.allen@boston.gov.uk 

Approved for publication: Not applicable  

 

Page 8



 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 11

McDowellA
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 1



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33

McDowellA_1
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 3



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Status:  This is the original version (as it was originally enacted).

Equality Act 2010
2010 CHAPTER 15

PART 11

ADVANCEMENT OF EQUALITY

CHAPTER 1

PUBLIC SECTOR EQUALITY DUTY

149 Public sector equality duty

(1) A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need
to—

(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that
is prohibited by or under this Act;

(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;

(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it.

(2) A person who is not a public authority but who exercises public functions must, in the
exercise of those functions, have due regard to the matters mentioned in subsection (1).

(3) Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between persons
who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it involves
having due regard, in particular, to the need to—

(a) remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic;

(b) take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it;

(c) encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to participate
in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons
is disproportionately low.

Page 41

McDowellA_2
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 5

McDowellA_3
Typewritten Text



2 Equality Act 2010 (c. 15)
Part 11 – Advancement of equality

Chapter 1 – Public sector equality duty
Document Generated: 2021-06-08

Status:  This is the original version (as it was originally enacted).

(4) The steps involved in meeting the needs of disabled persons that are different from
the needs of persons who are not disabled include, in particular, steps to take account
of disabled persons’ disabilities.

(5) Having due regard to the need to foster good relations between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it involves having due
regard, in particular, to the need to—

(a) tackle prejudice, and
(b) promote understanding.

(6) Compliance with the duties in this section may involve treating some persons more
favourably than others; but that is not to be taken as permitting conduct that would
otherwise be prohibited by or under this Act.

(7) The relevant protected characteristics are—
age;
disability;
gender reassignment;
pregnancy and maternity;
race;
religion or belief;
sex;
sexual orientation.

(8) A reference to conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act includes a reference to—
(a) a breach of an equality clause or rule;
(b) a breach of a non-discrimination rule.

(9) Schedule 18 (exceptions) has effect.

150 Public authorities and public functions

(1) A public authority is a person who is specified in Schedule 19.

(2) In that Schedule—
Part 1 specifies public authorities generally;
Part 2 specifies relevant Welsh authorities;
Part 3 specifies relevant Scottish authorities.

(3) A public authority specified in Schedule 19 is subject to the duty imposed by
section 149(1) in relation to the exercise of all of its functions unless subsection (4)
applies.

(4) A public authority specified in that Schedule in respect of certain specified functions
is subject to that duty only in respect of the exercise of those functions.

(5) A public function is a function that is a function of a public nature for the purposes
of the Human Rights Act 1998.

151 Power to specify public authorities

(1) A Minister of the Crown may by order amend Part 1, 2 or 3 of Schedule 19.

Page 42



 

Page 4 of 35 

1  Introduction 
 
1.1 Boston Borough Council is situated in the south of the county of Lincolnshire, which 

contains 7 district councils in total.  The Borough has a population of 69,366 (as detailed 
in Office for National Statistics 2018 Mid-Year Population Estimates and is the smallest 
district in the County in terms of population.  In terms of area it is the second smallest, 
covering 139 square miles.  The council area is mainly rural with an urban area 
comprising of Boston town itself.  

 

2  The Licensing Act 2003 
 

2.1  Boston Borough Council as Licensing Authority (hereinafter referred to as the Licensing 
Authority) is responsible for the licensing of all licensable activities under the Licensing 
Act 2003 (the Act).  This document sets out the policies and principles that the Licensing 
Authority will apply when making decisions on applications for: 

 

 The sale by retail of alcohol; 

 The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club; 

 The provision of regulated entertainment; and 

 The provision of late night refreshment. 
 
The term licensee/licence holder is deemed to include licence holders, designated 
premises supervisors and club premises certificate holders. 

 
This policy is intended to provide clarity to applicants, responsible authorities and other 
persons on how this Licensing Authority will determine applications to supply alcohol, 
provide regulated entertainment and operate late night refreshment premises.  Guidance 
and best practice is available to assist applicants; this guidance does not form part of this 
Policy.  The Licensing Authority will take this Policy into account if its discretion is 
engaged (i.e. at a hearing following relevant representations or a review hearing) 

 
2.2 The Licensing Authority has a duty under the Act to carry out its functions with a view to 

promoting the 4 licensing objectives. These are: - 
 

 the prevention of crime and disorder 

 public safety 

 the prevention of public nuisance 

 the protection of children from harm 
 
2.3 It is recognised that the licensing function is only one means of securing the delivery of 

the above objectives and should not therefore be seen as solving all problems within the 
community. The Licensing Authority will therefore continue to work in partnership with the 
Borough Council, its neighbouring authorities, the Police, Responsible Authorities, local 
businesses and local people towards the promotion of the objectives. 

 
2.4 In preparing this policy statement the Licensing Authority has consulted with the 

following: - 
 

 Lincolnshire Police 

 responsible authorities as defined by the Act 

 representatives of licence holders and club premises certificate holders 

 local businesses and their representatives 

 local residents and their representatives 

 Boston Borough Council Elected Members 

Page 43

McDowellA_4
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 6



 

Page 5 of 35 

 Parish Councils 

 Other persons and organisations that the Authority considered could contribute to 
this Policy 

 
A full list of consultees is available from the Licensing Section on request. 

 
Appropriate weight has been given to the views of all those consulted prior to this policy 
statement taking effect on 24 November 2020. 

 
2.5 In developing this Policy, the Licensing Authority took into account the legal requirements 

of the 2003 Act and had regard to other legislation and guidance, including, but not 
exclusively: 

 

 Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to take all reasonable steps to 
reduce crime and disorder within the Borough 

 

 The Regulators’ Compliance Code (set out under the Legislative and Regulatory 
Reform Act 2006) not to impede economic progress by the regulations we set out 
and to particularly consider the impact of regulations on small businesses 

 

 The Provision of Services Regulations 2009 to ensure requirements are: 
 

 Non- discriminatory. 
 Justified by an overriding reason relating to the public interest. 
 Proportionate to that public interest objective. 
 Clear and unambiguous.  
 Objective. 
 Made public in advance, and 
 Transparent and accessible 

 

 Human Rights Act, 1998 
 

 Violent Crime Reduction Act, 2006 
 

 Policing and Crime Act, 2009 
 

 Police reform and Social Responsibility Act, 2011 
 

 Live Music Act, 2012 
 

 Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act, 2014 
 

 The Legislative Reform (Entertainment Licensing) Order, 2014 
 

 Deregulation Act, 2015 
 

 Immigration Act, 2016 
 

 Equality Act, 2010 
 
2.6 The Act describes two “bodies” that may make representations to licence applications 

and may apply for an existing premises licence to be reviewed by the Licensing Authority, 
Responsible Authorities and “other persons”.  Responsible Authorities are defined in the 
Act. 

 

Page 44



 

Page 6 of 35 

2.7 “Other persons” means any individual, body or business who is affected by the operation 
of a licensed premises regardless of their geographical location.  Although they may be in 
any geographical location, any representation they make must be relevant to one or more 
of the licensing objectives and must not be considered to be frivolous or vexatious.  
Additionally, any application to review a premises licence must not be repetitious.   

 
2.8 The Licensing Authority will, however, look at the geographical location of the author of 

any representation or review application received.  Where the author lives or works a 
significant distance from the premises subject of an application or a review, this authority 
will examine the content of the representation particularly closely.  The authority will 
expect the author to explain in detail how, in terms of the licensing objectives, they would 
be affected by the application.  The Licensing Authority will consider rejecting any 
representation or review application which does not include sufficient detail to outline 
harm or disturbance which may be caused. 

 
2.9 The purpose of licensing is to control licensed premises and other events within the terms 

of the Act.  Where responsible authorities and other persons do not raise any 
representations about the application made to the Licensing Authority, it is the duty of the 
Authority to grant a licence or certificate subject to conditions that are consistent with the 
operating schedule and any mandatory conditions prescribed in the 2003 Act itself.  The 
Licensing Authority will not impose any further conditions unless its discretion has been 
engaged following the making of relevant representation(s).  It may then only impose 
such conditions as are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives arising out of the 
consideration of the representation(s). 

 
2.10 These conditions will relate to the premises and other places being used for licensable 

activities and the impact of those activities in the vicinity. In this regard the Licensing 
Authority will primarily focus on the direct impact of any activities taking place on those 
living, working or otherwise engaged in the area concerned.  Vicinity has not been given 
a definition within the Act and may vary in distance from the premises depending on the 
nature of the area.  Considerations which will be taken into account when assessing “in 
the vicinity” include but are not limited to: 

 

 The nature of the licensable activity 

 The nature and locality of the premises 

 The time of day of the proposed licensable activity/activities 

 The frequency of the activity/activities 
 
 
2.11 The Licensing Authority will discharge its responsibilities identified by other Local and 

Government strategies and policies, so far as they impact on the objectives of the 
Licensing Act.  Some examples of these strategies and policies are: 

 

 Government Action Plan for Tackling Alcohol Related Crime, Disorder and 
Nuisance; 

 

 Safer Clubbing 
 
 

 Community Safety Strategy. 
 
 
 

 Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) Home Office guidance or any successor 
to this. 

Page 45



 

Page 7 of 35 

 
 
2.12 The Licensing Authority takes the following approach to the decision making process: 
 

 Each case will be decided upon its merits. This Authority will not apply a rigid rule 
to its decision making; 

 

 Other persons can include residents’/ tenants’ associations, community 
associations, trade associations and elected members. Councillors may 
represent other persons, providing they do not also sit on the Licensing Sub-
Committee determining the application in question. 

 

 We will give clear reasons for our decisions. 
 

Where valid representations are made applications will be considered by a Licensing 
Sub-Committee (consisting of Councillors); we give applicants, responsible Authorities 
and other persons an equal opportunity to state their case in accordance with our 
protocol, which is available from the Licensing Section. 

 
2.13 The licensing function is not to be seen as the primary mechanism for the general control 

of anti-social behaviour by individuals once they are beyond the direct control of the 
licensee of any premises concerned.  Whilst there are a range of statutory powers 
available to deal with such behaviour, these powers will not always be sufficient to control 
negative impacts on the licensing objectives in the vicinity.  Therefore, the fact that such 
impact may occur is a relevant factor in the consideration of licensing applications.  This 
may lead to a refusal of the application or the addition of conditions to meet the 
concern(s) contained in a relevant representation 

 
2.14 The Licensing Authority is committed to the implementation and application of this policy 

in such a manner and to ensure that no applicant or other person is treated less 
favourably on the grounds of sex, marital status, race, nationality, ethnic or national 
origin, colour, disability or age, nor is disadvantaged by the application of a rule, condition 
or requirement, which has a discriminatory effect which cannot be justified either in 
licensing terms or as a requirement of law.  An Equality Impact Assessment has been 
undertaken with respect to this policy 

 

2.15 The Licensing Authority is fully committed to promoting equal opportunities and non-
discriminatory practice. For further information, please see 
https://www.mybostonuk.com/5885-2/ 

 

3  Integrated Strategies and the Avoidance of Duplication 

  
3.1 The Boston Borough Council aims to make the Boston area a safer place to live, work 

and visit by reducing crime and the fear of crime and reducing antisocial behaviour. 

 
3.2 By consulting widely prior to this policy statement being published the Licensing Authority 

has endeavoured to secure proper integration with local crime prevention, planning, 
transport, tourism and cultural strategies. 

 
3.3 There are a number of wider issues which may need to be given due consideration when 

dealing with applications. The Licensing Committee may therefore receive and may act 
upon relevant reports concerning:- 

 

Page 46

https://www.mybostonuk.com/5885-2/


 

Page 8 of 35 

 crime and disorder 

 community safety issues 

 needs of the local tourist economy 

 employment situation in the area and the need for new investment and   
employment where appropriate 

 planning considerations which might affect licensed premises 

 local transport arrangements 

 impact of licensing on regulated entertainment and particularly live music and 
dancing with reference to any cultural strategy 

 any other reports considered appropriate to the licensing function 
  
3.4 The Licensing Authority recognises that licensing applications should not be seen as a 

re-run of the planning application process and that there should be a clear separation of 
the planning and licensing regimes to avoid duplication and inefficiency.  There are 
several key differences between licensing and planning control.  Licensing is concerned 
with the fitness of the operator and detailed issues concerning the operation and 
management of the premises that are not addressed by the planning control process.  
Planning control relates to use of the premises. The grant of planning permission should 
not be a presumption that a premises licence will automatically follow and vice versa.  
Additionally, there is no legal basis for the Licensing Authority to refuse a licence 
application because it does not have planning permission. 

 
3.5 Applicants are strongly encouraged to make any necessary applications for Planning 

permission /Building Regulations approval permission before or at the same time as they 
make an application for a licence/club premises certificate. Furthermore, to reduce the 
risk of being subject to planning enforcement, applicants are advised to ensure that: 

 

 the activity to be authorised by the premises licence or club premises certificate 
is a lawful planning use; and 

 

 the hours sought do not exceed those authorised by any planning permission. 
  
3.6 In reaching a decision of whether or not to grant a licence, the Licensing Authority will 

take account of any non-compliance with other statutory requirements brought to its 
attention, particularly where these undermine the licensing objectives.  Non-compliance 
with statutory requirements may demonstrate that the premises are unsuitable for the 
activities proposed or that the management of the premises is not adequate to protect the 
public from harm or nuisance. 

 
3.7 In order to avoid duplication with other existing legislation and regulatory regimes the 

Licensing Authority will not attach conditions to the licence unless they are considered 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. Conditions will be considered 
unnecessary if they are already adequately covered by other legislation.  

 
3.8  Conditions (other than mandatory conditions and those in the applicant’s operating 

schedule) may not be attached to a premises licence or club premises certificate unless 
the application has been the subject of a relevant representation. 

 

4  Licensing Objectives 
  

Each of the four licensing objectives is of equal importance and no one objective will take 
precedence over others when considering applications. 

 
The Licensing Authority considers the effective and responsible management of 
premises, instruction, training and supervision of staff and the adoption of best practice to 

Page 47



 

Page 9 of 35 

be amongst the most essential control measures for the achievement of all the licensing 
objectives.  For this reason these elements should be specifically considered and 
addressed within the applicants operating schedule. 

 
The Licensing Authority recommends that applicants carry out their own risk 
assessments in relation to the four licensing objectives in order to assist them in deciding 
whether any steps are required to be taken in order to meet those objectives. 

 
In accordance with the Home Office Guidance to Licensing Authorities, this Authority 
expects applicants to demonstrate knowledge of the area within which the licensed 
premises is situated.  This would include, for example, proximity to residential properties, 
areas where children congregate and any risk posed to the local area by the applicant’s 
proposed licensable activity. 

 

4.1 Prevention of crime and disorder 
  
4.1.1 The Licensing Authority will carry out its licensing functions with a view to promoting the 

prevention of crime and disorder and will seek to ensure that licensees/certificate 
holders/designated premises supervisors take measures to regulate the behaviour of 
persons whilst on their premises, or in the immediate vicinity of the premises. 

 
4.1.2 In addition to the requirement for the Licensing Authority to promote this licensing 

objective, it also has a duty under Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to 
exercise its functions with due regard to the likely effect on, and do all it reasonably can 
to prevent, crime and disorder in the Borough. 

 
4.1.3 When addressing crime and disorder the applicant should initially identify any particular 

issues (having regard to their type of premises and/or activities) which are likely to 
adversely affect the promotion of the crime and disorder objective.  Such steps as are 
required to deal with these identified issues should be included within the applicant’s 
operating schedule. 

 
The Licensing Authority encourages applicants to include in their operating schedule the 
steps they propose to take to reduce/deter crime and disorder.  These steps will vary 
from premises to premises according to the type of licensable activities that are to be 
carried on.  Examples of measures the Licensing Authority encourage applicants to 
consider and address include 

 

 Physical security features e.g. use of toughened, polycarbonate  or plastic 
drinking glasses 

 Procedure for risk assessment of alcohol promotions to ensure they do not 
promote irresponsible drinking or potentially breach the mandatory condition on 
irresponsible drinks promotions 

 The use  and number of  Security Industry Authority (SIA) registered door 
supervisors 

 Amount of seating to be provided to reduce the risk of high volume vertical 
drinking 

 Training given to staff in crime prevention and drug awareness measures 

 Measures agreed with the Police to reduce crime and disorder 

 Measures to prevent the use or supply of illegal drugs 

 Search procedures 

 Formalisation of a dispersal policy 

 Measures to prevent customers taking glasses and bottles away from the 
premises 

Page 48



 

Page 10 of 35 

 Training given to staff to prevent the sale of alcohol to those who are under age 
or appear drunk 

 Measures to tackle street drinking including not selling single cans or bottles of 
beer, lager and cider; not selling super strength (ABV above 6.5) beer, lager and 
cider; and attaching water proof labels with printed shop names and addresses to 
cans and bottles of beer, lager and cider. 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              
 

CCTV remains one of the most effective measures for reducing crime and disorder. The 
Licensing Authority expects premises that retail alcohol for consumption on or off the 
premises will have an effective CCTV system installed that operates in compliance with 
the requirements of Lincolnshire Police 

 
4.1.4 The British Beer and Pub Association (BBPA) has consolidated good practice on 

combating violence in licensed premises into a guide to risk assessment.  This is 
available on the BBPAs website: www.beerandpub.com. 

 

4.2 Public Safety 
 
4.2.1 The Licensing Authority will carry out their licensing functions with a view to promoting 

public safety and will seek to ensure that licensees/certificate holders/designated 
premises supervisors take measures to protect the safety of performers and persons 
attending licensable activities.  The risk to public safety will vary according to the type of 
premises and the activities carried out. 

 
The Licensing Authority encourages applicants to include in their operating schedules the 
steps they propose to take to promote public safety. 

 
4.2.2 Where an applicant identifies an issue in regard to public safety, which is not covered by 

existing legislation, the applicant should identify in their operating schedule the steps 
which will be taken to ensure public safety. 

 
4.2.3 Depending on the individual style and characteristics of the premises and/or events the 

following issues may be of relevance: 
 

 Use of equipment and effects 

 Levels of door supervision 

 Measures to prevent the supply and use of illegal drugs 

 Physical safety features e.g. use of toughened glass, polycarbonate and plastic 
containers 

 Fire evacuation procedures 

 Provision of CCTV (see para 7.1.3) 

 Occupancy figures 
 
4.2.4 It will be the responsibility of licence/certificate holders/designated premises supervisors 

to ensure they have complied with all Health and Safety legislation. 
 
4.2.5 Where a premise is on a vessel for which a current Passenger Ship Certificate is in force, 

the public safety objective can generally be considered to be met in respect of the layout, 
structure, access arrangements and operation of the vessel. 

 
4.2.6 Whilst the Licensing Authority cannot require documentation regarding risk assessments 

to be attached to the operating schedule, it considers such risk assessments to be good 
practice.  Risk assessments, including fire risk assessments, are a useful tool in the 
instruction and training of staff, as well as a sound basis for review by the licence holder, 

Page 49

http://www.beerandpub.com/


 

Page 11 of 35 

in the event of needing to make an application for variation of a premises licence or in 
response to changing circumstances/conditions at the premises. 

 

4.3 Prevention of Public Nuisance 
 
4.3.1 Licensed premises have a significant potential to adversely impact on communities 

through public nuisances that arise from their operation.  The Licensing Authority wishes 
to maintain and protect the amenity of residents and other businesses from the potential 
consequence of the operation of licensed premises whilst recognising the valuable 
cultural, social and business importance that such premises provide. 

 
4.3.2 The Licensing Authority intends to interpret “public nuisance” in its widest sense and 

takes it to include such issues as noise, light, odour, litter and anti-social behaviour, 
where these matters impact on those living, working or otherwise engaged in normal 
activity in an area. 

 
4.3.3 When addressing public nuisance the applicant should initially identify any particular 

issues (having regard to their type of premises and/or activities) which are likely to 
adversely affect the promotion of the objective to prevent public nuisance.  Such steps as 
are required to deal with these identified issues should be included within the applicant’s 
operating schedule.  For example, the Licensing Authority expects an applicant to identify 
how public nuisance will be controlled in outside areas, particularly in smoking areas, that 
are not within the boundary of the licensed area. This would include prohibiting the 
consumption of alcohol. 

 
4.3.4 Applicants are encouraged to demonstrate in their operating schedule that suitable and 

sufficient measures have been identified and will be implemented and maintained to 
prevent public nuisance, relevant to the individual style and characteristics of their 
premises and events. These may include: 

 

 The location of premises and proximity to residential and other noise sensitive 
premises, such as hospitals, local businesses,  hospices and places of worship 

 The hours of opening, particularly between 23.00 and 07.00 

 The nature of the activities to be provided, including whether those activities are 
of a temporary or permanent nature and whether they are to be held inside or 
outside the premises 

 The design and layout of the premises and in particular the presence of noise 
limiting and/or monitoring features 

 The occupancy capacity of the premises (Where appropriate) 

 The availability of public transport to facilitate dispersal of customers 

 ‘wind down period’ between the end of the licensable activities and the closure of 
the premises 

 last admission time 

 The formulation of a dispersal policy 

 Control of nuisance from persons using outside areas and in particular smoking 
areas. 

 
4.3.5 The following examples of control measures are given to assist applicants who may need 

to take account of them in their operating schedule, having regard to their particular type 
of premises and/or activities 

 

 Effective and responsible management of premises 

 Appropriate instruction, training and supervision of those employed or engaged 
to prevent incidents of public nuisance e.g. to ensure customers leave quietly 

Page 50



 

Page 12 of 35 

 Control of operating hours for all or parts (e.g. garden areas) of the premises, 
including such matters as deliveries 

 Adoption of best practice guidance (e.g. Good practice Guide on the Control of 
Noise from Pubs and Clubs, produced by Institute of Acoustics) 

 Installation of soundproofing, air conditioning, acoustic lobbies and sound 
limitation devices 

 Management of people, including staff and traffic (and resulting queues) arriving 
and leaving premises 

 Liaison with public transport providers 

 Siting of external lighting, including security lighting 

 Management arrangements for collection and disposal of litter 

 Effective ventilation systems to prevent nuisance from odour 

 Undertaking noise impact assessments 

 Regular assessments of the noise coming from the premises when used for 
regulated entertainment and steps to control the level of noise so as not to cause 
disturbance to local residents. 

 Regular assessment of any noise coming from outside areas, including smoking 
areas, and steps to control the level of noise so as not to cause disturbance to 
local residents. 

 Keeping a written record of assessments in a log book kept for that purpose 
including, the time and date of the checks, the person making them and the 
results including any remedial action.  

 Identifying smoking areas in operating schedules to enable responsible 
authorities to appraise proposals with a view to promoting the prevention of 
public nuisance licensing objective. 

 Keeping external doors (except for access and egress) and windows closed 
when regulated entertainment is being provided except in the event of an 
emergency. 

 The disposal of empty glass bottles not being undertaken externally between 
23.00 hours and opening hours on the following day on every day of the week. 

 Posting at exits from the premises in a place where they can be seen and easily 
read by the public, notices requiring customers to leave the premises and the 
area quietly and in an orderly manner. 

 Regularly clearing outside the premises of litter associated with the operation of 
the premises e.g. cigarette ends. 

 

4.4 Protection of children from harm 

 
4.4.1 The Licensing Authority recognises the great variety of premises for which licences may 

be sought. These will include theatres, cinemas, restaurants, pubs, nightclubs, cafes, 
takeaways, community halls and schools. Except as prohibited by law, access by children 
to all types of premises will not be limited in any way unless it is considered necessary to 
do so to protect them from harm.   It is hoped that family friendly premises will thrive but 
the risk of harm to children remains a paramount consideration when determining 
applications. 

 
The protection of children from harm includes protection of children from moral, 
psychological and physical harm. 

 
4.4.2 When receiving relevant representations and deciding whether to limit access to children, 

other than in circumstances where the law demands their access to be limited, 
applicants/licence/certificate holders should consider the activities carried on at the 
premises.  Examples which may give rise to concern in respect of children would include 
premises; 

Page 51



 

Page 13 of 35 

 

 Where entertainment or services of an adult or sexual nature are commonly 
provided; 

 Where there have been convictions of members of the current staff at the 
premises for serving alcohol to minors or with a reputation for underage drinking; 

 With a known association with drug taking or dealing 

 Where there is a strong element of gambling on the premises (but not, for 
example, the simple presence of a small number of cash prize gaming machines) 

      
 
4.4.3 Films - In the case of premises which are used for film exhibitions, conditions will be 

imposed restricting access only to those who meet the required age limit in line with any 
certificate granted by the British Board of Film Classification or, in specific cases, a 
certificate given to the film by the Licensing Authority itself.  Applicants will be expected to 
explain in their operating schedule the steps they intend to take to ensure children and 
young persons do not gain access to films with a restricted access classification. 

 
Where a film is to be shown locally within the authority’s area and has not been classified 
by the British Board of Film Classification, an application can be made to the Authority for 
the film to be classified.  Applications should be made in accordance with the guidelines 
set out by the British Board of Film Classification.  These guidelines can be found at: 
www.bbfc.co.uk. 

 
4.4.4 Theatres- In certain cases it may be necessary to impose a condition to restrict the 

admission of children to theatres, which are incorporating adult entertainment in their 
productions. 

 
4.4.5 Where a large number of children are likely to be present on any licensed   

premises and representations are received; conditions may be imposed requiring the 
presence of an appropriate number of adult staff to ensure public safety and their 
protection from harm.  Where the Licensing Authority considers it appropriate, following 
receipt of relevant representation(s) it may require the adult supervisors (being persons 
over the age of 18) to be subject to a criminal record check.  The onus will be on the 
Premises Licence holder to ensure that staff members are suitable to carry out the 
supervision of children, which may include criminal record disclosure from the Disclosure 
and Barring Service (DBS). 

 
4.4.6 The options available for limiting access by children would include – 
 

 Limitations of the hours when children may be present 

 Limitations or the exclusion of the presence of children under certain ages when 
particular specified activities are taking place; 

 Limitations on the parts of premises to which children might be given access; 

 Age limitations (below 18 years); 

 Requirements for accompanying adults (including for example, a requirement 
which provide that children under a particular age must be accompanied by an 
adult); and 

 Full exclusion of those people under 18 years of age from the premises when 
any licensable activities are taking place. 

 
4.4.7 The Licensing Authority will not impose any condition that specifically requires access for 

children to be provided at any premises. Where no restriction or limitation is imposed the 
issue of access will remain a matter for the discretion of the individual licence 
holder/certificate holder or designated premises supervisor. 

 

Page 52

http://www.bbfc.co.uk/

	Agenda
	1 TO CONSIDER AN APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE WHERE RELEVANT REPRESENTATIONS HAVE BEEN RECEIVED
	Appendix 1 - location plan
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3 - Police representation
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5 - Equality Act 2010 extract
	Appendix 6 - Licensing Policy extract




